University of Idaho College of Education By-Laws

(Amendments adopted May 15, 2003; August 2006, December 2009, May 2010, August 2013, April 2014)

Contents

Article I Name, Vision, Mission, Functions and Authority	3
Section 1. Name	3
Section 2. Vision, and Mission of the College of Education	3
Section 3. Functions	3
Section 4. Authority	4
Article II Membership, Responsibilities, and Privileges	4
Section 1. Education Faculty	4
Section 2. Faculty Members Emeriti	5
Section 3. Associated Faculties	5
Article III Administrative Officers	5
Article IV College Meetings	8
Section 1. Chairing of College Faculty Meetings	8
Section 2. College Meetings	
Section 3. Quorum	8
Section 4. Agenda	8
Section 5. Voting Procedures	
Section 6. Administrative Veto Power	
Section 7. Minutes of COEd Faculty Meetings	8
Article V Faculties of Departments	
Section 1. General Responsibilities	9
Section 2. Specific Responsibilities	g
Section 3. Department Executives	g
Section 4. Department Meetings	10
Article VI University-Level Councils and Committees	11
Section 1. Faculty Council	11
Section 2. Graduate Council	11
Section 3. Research Council	12
Section 4. Teacher Education Coordinating Committee. FSH 1640.86	12
Article VII College Committees	13
Section 1. Faculty Affairs and Awards Committee	13
Section 2. Staff Affairs and Awards Committee	13
Section 3. Dean's Advisory Council	14

Section 4. College of Education and Teacher Education Undergraduate Student Petition Committee	14
Section 5. College Coordinating Committee	14
Section 6. Graduate Research and Policy Committee	15
Section 7. Scholarship Committee.	15
Section 8. Mentoring Committees	15
Section 9. Tenure and Promotion Committee	15
Section 10. College Assessment Committee.	17
Section 11. College Safety and Health Committee (approved May 2010)	18
Section 12. College Technology Committee	18
Section 13. Ad Hoc Committees	18
Article VIII College Advocacy Council	19
Section 1. Membership.	19
Section 2. Function	19
Article IX Department Advisory Boards	19
Section 1. Membership	19
Section 2. Function	19
Article X Rules of Order	19
Section 1. Robert's Rules of Order.	19
Article XI Amendments	20
Section 1. Amendments	20
Appendix 1 UPDATE	20
Appendix 2 Academic Ranks and Responsibilities	21

Article I

Name, Vision, Mission, Functions and Authority

Section 1. Name

The name of this constituent faculty of the University shall be the faculty of the College of Education (COEd), hereinafter designated the "education faculty".

Section 2. Vision, and Mission of the College of Education

We are Idaho's nationally ranked and internationally known College of Education. We embrace the University of Idaho's vision, mission, and goals and reflect those in our vision, mission and goals.

Our Vision: Idaho's Leader in Lifelong Learning and Healthy Lifestyles. We seek teaching, learning, and living that transforms, invigorates, and nurtures. We expand lasting knowledge centered in local and global communities. We seek enactment of our vision through the following values and practices which we refer to as CARE:

- Cultural Proficiencies
- Assessment, Teaching and Learning
- Reflective Scholarship and Practice
- Engagement with Partners

<u>Our Mission:</u> The University of Idaho's College of Education is the state's flagship and land-grant research college focused on the preparation of professionals for schools, the movement sciences, and workforce counselors and educators. From our commitment to develop leaders in these fields emerges our responsibility to enhance the scientific, social, economic, and cultural assets of the state and develop solutions for complex problems.

We deliver on our commitment through focused, interdisciplinary excellence in teaching, research, outreach, and engagement in a collaborative environment at our residential main campus and our regional centers. Consistent with the land-grant ideal, our outreach activities serve the state and at the same time strengthen our teaching, scholarly, and creative capacities.

Our teaching and learning include undergraduate, graduate and professional education offered through both resident instruction and extended delivery. Our scholarly and creative activities promote K-12 academic achievement, human development and wellness, global awareness, and progress in professional practice. (Formally adopted April 20, 2012.)

Section 3. Functions

The functions of the education faculty shall be to:

- 1.3.1 Serve as the official teacher education unit of the University of Idaho which prepares personnel for professional service as teachers, administrators, and other specialists for P-12 schools, post-secondary schools and higher education.
- 1.3.2 Prepare personnel for education and movement science-related service, training, coordinating, managerial and leadership roles for agencies and organizations.
- 1.3.3 Promote faculty and student research and dissemination of results.
- 1.3.4 Meet the continuing education needs of personnel in schools, institutions, agencies and the private sector.

- 1.3.5 Provide consultation to public and private educational and health agencies and organizations.
- 1.3.6 Provide leadership in consideration of educational, organizational and active living issues.

Section 4. Authority

The education faculty of the COEd is the policy-making body for this college. As provided in the Constitution of the University Faculty, Article I, Section 4, Clause A, the constituent faculty of each college or similar unit, meeting regularly and in accordance with By-Laws adopted by a majority vote of the members of such faculty, is authorized to establish and to effect its own educational objectives, including matters of student admission and curriculum, and to participate in the selection of its own dean, other executive officers, and faculty members, subject only to the general rules and regulations of the university faculty and the authority of the president and the regents.

Article II

Membership, Responsibilities, and Privileges

Section 1. Education Faculty

The education faculty shall be constituted of the dean of the college, the associate dean, and other members of the faculty of the university in teaching, research, administrative, supervisory or consultative positions who qualify under the Article II, Section I, of the Constitution of the University Faculty (see Appendix 1), holding appointments in the college or who retain academic rank in the college. Members on full-time, State Board of Education appointment in the university who qualify under this section shall have the responsibility and privilege of participation, with vote, in meetings of the education faculty and when members thereof, the meetings of the appropriate constituent faculty of departments of the college. These responsibilities and privileges include:

- 2.1.1 Establish minimum standards for admission to the COEd and establish standards to be maintained for progress in professional programs.
- 2.1.2 Determine courses of instruction, curricula, degrees to be offered, and requirements for graduation from the COEd.
- 2.1.3 Recommend general principles in regard to privileges such as scholarships, honors, and awards from the COEd.
- 2.1.4 Establish policies relating to the professional conduct of students and faculty.
- 2.1.5 Provide guidelines for student involvement in professional matters.
- 2.1.6 Participate in the selection of department chairs and in the selection of the dean and associate dean *(adopted May 12, 2006)* of the COEd.
- 2.1.7 Participate in the election of the representatives to the University Graduate Council, Research Council and Faculty Council.
- 2.1.8 Establish policies relating to faculty administrative relationships.
- 2.1.9 Establish a faculty affairs and awards committee for the COEd which shall conduct a continuing study of salaries, professional problems, welfare, options and benefits, and working conditions of faculty members and make recommendations to the dean. The committee will also determine and implement policy regarding college-level faculty awards.
- 2.1.10 Establish a staff affairs and awards committee for the COEd which shall conduct a continuing study of salaries, professional problems, welfare, options and benefits, and working conditions of staff members and make recommendations to the dean. The committee will also determine and

- implement policy regarding college-level staff awards.
- 2.1.11 Participate in budgetary matters on the departmental and college level by: submitting budget items at the department level, being apprised of how departmental and college monies are allotted and establishing representative departmental and college budget committees to examine and make recommendations concerning budget matters.
- 2.1.12 Establish and maintain committees to carry out the immediate responsibilities of the COEd.
 2.1.12.a. Consideration will be given to include representation from each department in the COEd.
 The dean may also appoint ad hoc committees of a fact-finding nature or committees composed of administrators for advice and assistance.
- 2.1.13 Be subject to the responsibilities and privileges of members of the University of Idaho faculty as provided by Article IV of the Constitution of the University Faculty.

Section 2. Faculty Members Emeriti

Members of the education faculty who have retired from the university and have been granted emeritus rank shall continue to have the privilege of participation, without vote, in meetings of the COEd faculty and the appropriate constituent faculties of departments of the college. Emeriti faculty may be appointed to serve with vote on college and/or department committees.

Section 3. Associated Faculties

The adjunct faculty and affiliate faculty are associated faculties. Adjunct and affiliate faculty classification may be granted, by majority vote of the appropriate constituent faculties of departments of the college. Adjunct and affiliate faculty have the privilege of participation, without vote, in the meetings of the education faculty and the appropriate department faculties.

Article III

Administrative Officers

Section 1. Dean

- 3.1.1 Selection. The COEd is administered by a dean who is appointed by the regents on recommendation of the president. Such recommendation is formulated through procedures that (a) solicit advice and include active participation of faculty members and students in the college and (b) are consistent with the By-Laws of the education faculty (see FSH 1520 IV-7). When a vacancy in the position of dean occurs, the president convenes a search committee to advise in the selection of a new dean (see FSH 1420 D-1.b.; 1520 I-4-A).
- 3.1.2 Responsibilities. This statement of responsibilities allows for different procedures and different degrees of delegation of authority and responsibility within colleges (see FSH 1420 D)
- 3.1.3 The dean is the chair of the education faculty in the development of policies and priorities governing the academic program of the college. The dean is responsible both for the exercise of leadership in these matters and for the development of the leadership roles of other faculty members in the college decision-making process.
- 3.1.4 The dean is the chief executive officer of the college in the implementation of policies defined by the college or university faculty and approved by appropriate authority. As such, it is the dean's responsibility to:
 - 3.1.4.a Foster academic excellence in the college and each of its departments.
 - 3.1.4.b Operate a system of academic advising and counseling for students.

- 3.1.4.c Present to the Faculty Council or its committees matters that have been proposed by the education faculty and require approval by the Faculty Council.
- 3.1.4.d Present to the Council of Academic Deans or to other bodies problems of policy implementation that need university-wide attention, including the implementation of interdisciplinary programs.
- 3.1.4.e Develop budget proposals.
- 3.1.4.f Control expenditures from approved budgets.
- 3.1.4.g Develop recommendations concerning appointments, promotions, tenure, salaries, layoffs, and terminations of college personnel.
- 3.1.4.h Assign duties to the faculty.
- 3.1.4.i Define job responsibilities, assign duties, and supervise the activities of non-faculty personnel.
- 3.1.4.j Maintain contacts with the professions for which the college prepares graduates.
- 3.1.4.k Supervise the use, maintenance, and security of property entrusted to the college (responsibility for security is shared with Facilities Management and Campus Security).
- 3.1.4.l Allocate space assigned to the college within limitations imposed by the Space Allocation Committee.
- 3.1.4.m Develop college strategies to increase revenue through funding in development, grants and contracts, and customized professional development contracts.
- 3.1.5 The dean, individually and as a member of the Council of Academic Deans, advises the president on university-wide matters.
- 3.1.6 The dean is encouraged to organize his or her activities so as to provide time for personal involvement in teaching, research, or equivalent professional endeavors.
- 3.1.7 Tenure. The dean may be granted tenure in an academic discipline in accordance with the regular UI procedures for tenure, but may not be granted tenure as an administrator.
- 3.1.8 Evaluation. The dean serves in his or her administrative position at the pleasure of the president and regents, and the regents receive annual recommendations from the president concerning the dean's status. Opportunity is provided for an annual performance evaluation of the dean by the education faculty (see FSH 3320 C-1). Faculty members submit their evaluations directly to the provost and confidentiality is preserved.
- 3.1.9 Vote of Confidence. A vote of confidence by secret ballot may be called upon written request to the dean by 50 percent of the faculty within the college.

Section 2. Associate Dean

- 3.2.1 Selection. A faculty committee representing the education faculty shall make recommendations to the dean in the selection of an associate dean from within the full-time education faculty ranks.
- 3.2.2 Selection of a permanent associate dean. The responsibility for recommendation of an associate dean shall be shared between the voting faculty members of the college and the dean. A search committee will include equal number from each department. The dean will select the committee (adopted May 12, 2006).
- 3.2.3 Appointment of an Acting (or Temporary) associate dean. When a vacancy occurs, the college dean shall consult with the voting faculty members of the college and recommend to the provost and president a member of the college faculty, acceptable to both the dean and the majority of the college faculty to serve as its acting associate dean until a permanent associate dean is selected (adopted May

- 3.2.4 Responsibilities. The associate dean of the COEd assists the dean and acts in the absence of the dean. Responsibilities of the associate dean include, but are not limited to:
 - 3.2.4.a Provides oversight of internal operations, including personnel, fiscal, and student policies and practices.
 - 3.2.4.b Promotes a community of teaching, scholarly activity and service.
 - 3.2.4.c Acts as a liaison to faculty committees as assigned by the dean.
 - 3.2.4.d Assists the COEd in the development of undergraduate and graduate program initiatives.
 - 3.2.4.e Works with the COEd department chairs in fostering a system of off-campus and distance delivery of instruction and services.
 - 3.2.4.f Represents the COEd on various statewide committees.
 - 3.2.4.g Serves as the liaison to the university committees and offices and to the Associate Dean's group.
 - 3.2.4.h Assists the dean with the allocation, safety and security of facilities.
 - 3.2.4.i Fosters multicultural, diverse, and global programs of excellence within the COEd.
 - 3.2.4.j Leads special projects/programs assigned to the dean's office.
- 3.2.5 The associate dean is encouraged to organize his or her activities so as to provide time for personal involvement in teaching, research, or equivalent professional endeavors.
- 3.2.6 Tenure and Evaluation.
 - 3.2.6.a Opportunities are provided for annual, five-year, and additional performance evaluations.
 - 3.2.6.b Annual Evaluation. Opportunity is provided for an annual performance evaluation of the associate dean by the education faculty. Faculty members submit their evaluations to the dean and the dean furnishes the associate dean with a summary of the evaluations in such a way that the confidentiality of individual evaluations is preserved (see FSH 3320 C-2).
- 3.2.7 Five-Year Review. In addition, the associate dean shall be reviewed at least every five years by the dean and the faculty of the college in accordance with the following procedures:
 - 3.2.7.a Opportunity for all faculty and staff of the COEd to participate in the review.
 - 3.2.7.b A review committee that, in addition to college membership, includes at least one UI faculty member from outside the college.
 - 3.2.7.c Solicitation of input by the committee from appropriate constituencies of the COEd.
 - 3.2.7.d Confidentiality of all individual evaluations will be ensured.
 - 3.2.7.e Opportunity for the associate dean to prepare a portfolio summarizing his or her administrative achievements for the preceding period for consideration by those individuals conducting the review.
 - 3.2.7.f Preparation of a written report summarizing the findings and recommendations of the review, which will be forwarded to the dean and the associate dean.
 - 3.2.7.g The dean will submit the written report along with any additional comments and recommendations to the provost and provide appropriate feedback to the college faculty and staff.
- 3.2.8 Additional Review. The dean may initiate a review at any time he or she judges such review is needed. Likewise, the faculty of the college initiate, by majority vote, such a review.
- 3.2.9 Vote of Confidence. A vote of confidence by secret ballot may be called upon written request to the dean by 50 percent of the faculty within the college.

Article IV

College Meetings

Section 1. Chairing of College Faculty Meetings

The dean of the college shall serve as chairperson and presiding officer during meetings of the education faculty. The dean shall appoint one of the staff to serve as secretary of this body. In the absence of the dean, the associate dean shall assume the duties and responsibilities of the chairperson. In the absence of both the dean and the associate dean, a member of the education faculty designated by the dean, shall serve as chairperson and presiding officer.

Section 2. College Meetings

Meetings of the education faculty may be called at the discretion of the dean, or in the absence of the dean, by the chairperson as provided in Section 1. Meetings also shall be called upon written request of 25 percent of the members of the education faculty. Minutes of each meeting shall be distributed to each faculty member.

Section 3. Quorum

A quorum shall consist of 50 percent of the members of the education faculty as defined in these By-Laws, Article II, Section 1 (see appendix 1). When a quorum is not met at a faculty meeting and policy decisions are needed which affect the COEd, an e-mail vote will be held. This e-mail vote will require participation of at least 50 percent of the members of the education faculty.

Section 4. Agenda

The dean of the college, or in the dean's absence the alternate chairperson, shall be responsible for and shall issue the agenda at least one week prior to each meeting of the education faculty. The agenda shall list all subjects, other than routine matters, to be voted on by the education faculty. A faculty member may submit an item for the master agenda. If the item is not taken up for consideration in the faculty meeting, it may be called for at that meeting by a 25 percent vote of the faculty present.

Section 5. Voting Procedures

Major policies to be voted upon by faculty must be presented in writing at a faculty meeting, or published in full with the agenda, at least one week prior to voting. A simple majority of the quorum is needed to approve an item. Voting shall be by secret ballot upon the request of one faculty member. Opportunity will be given to the faculty to vote by absentee ballot. Absentee ballots shall be given to the secretary prior to the meeting. Full-time Faculty who are State Board of Education appointed shall have voting privileges.

Section 6. Administrative Veto Power

The dean or administrative head of the COEd has the power to veto any item passed by the education faculty. Once vetoed, the item may be placed on the next meeting agenda at the request of the faculty and, if a quorum is met, the veto may be overridden by a two-thirds majority vote of the faculty present.

Section 7. Minutes of COEd Faculty Meetings

Minutes of all COEd faculty meetings will be compiled and filed in the Dean's administrative office and posted on the web within two weeks of the meeting. The minutes will be distributed along with the agenda prior to the next faculty meeting. Minutes will be approved at the next meeting (adopted May 12, 2006).

Article V

Faculties of Departments

Section 1. General Responsibilities

The faculties of departments within the college have the responsibility and are guaranteed the right to participate in the governance of their respective units, as provided in the Constitution of the University Faculty.

Section 2. Specific Responsibilities

The faculties of departments within the college have the constitutional authority to participate in the decisions with respect to the responsibilities as defined in these By-Laws, Article II, Section 1

Section 3. Department Executives

- 5.3.1 Title. The official title of the executive officer of each department shall be chair.
- 5.3.2 Selection.
 - 5.3.2.a Selection of Permanent Chair. The responsibility for recommending department chairs shall be shared between the voting faculty members of the department and the COEd dean (see FSH 1420, E-4).
 - 5.3.2.b Appointment of an Acting (or Temporary) Chair. When a vacancy occurs, the college dean shall assemble and consult with the voting faculty members of the department and recommend to the provost and president a member of the department's faculty, acceptable to both the dean and the majority of the department's faculty, to serve as its acting chair until a permanent chair is selected (see FSH 1420 E-5).
- 5.3.3 Responsibilities. The department chair is responsible for interpreting university and college objectives and policies for the faculty of the department and, through leadership, ensuring faculty participation in formulating and carrying out the department's policies within the framework of the objectives and policies of the college and university. It is understood that the general responsibility for leadership includes:
 - 5.3.3.a Assisting higher education administration in the assignment and evaluation of the services of each member of the department's faculty and staff;
 - 5.3.3.b Promoting effective leadership of personnel and management of department resources;
 - 5.3.3.c Providing leadership in the development and implementation of department plans;
 - 5.3.3.d Providing for open communication with faculty and staff:
 - 5.3.3.e Fostering excellence in teaching, scholarship, and outreach for faculty, students, and staff in the department;
 - 5.3.3.f Effectively representing all constituents of the department;
 - 5.3.3.g Continuing personal professional development in areas of leadership.
- 5.3.4 Tenure. Department chairs must hold academic rank in a discipline. Tenure, in the academic rank only, may be granted under the usual procedures; tenure is not granted in the administrative capacity (see FSH 3520 F-3.)
- 5.3.5 Review and Evaluation as a Faculty Member. The review and evaluation of department chairs require consideration of their responsibilities as faculty members and as department chairs as

defined by percentage allocations in the Annual Position Description. Department chairs are entitled to review and evaluation in conjunction with their responsibilities as faculty members.

- 5.3.5.a Annual Evaluation. The annual evaluation shall be conducted by the dean in accordance with the provisions of the FSH 3320 A.
- 5.3.5.b Third-Year Review. If the department chair is untenured, there shall be a third-year review in accordance with procedures outlined in the FSH 3520 H-3.
- 5.3.5.c Five-Year Review. If the department chair is tenured, there shall be a performance evaluation completed in accordance with the provisions of the FSH 3320 C.
- 5.3.6 Review and Evaluation as Department Chair. Department chairs are entitled to review and evaluation in conjunction with their responsibilities as department chairs.
 - 5.3.6.a Annual Evaluation. The annual evaluation shall be conducted by the dean in accordance with the chair's achievement of the responsibilities specified in the FSH 1420 E-1.
 - 5.3.6.b Periodic Review. Each department chair is formally reviewed at least six months before the end of each appointment term, or if there is not a fixed appointment term, at least every five years (see FSH 1420 E-6.2.b). The mechanisms of formal review include:
 - 5.3.6.b.(1) Opportunity for all faculty and staff of the department to participate in the review.
 - 5.3.6.b.(2) A review committee that, in addition to department membership, includes at least one UI faculty member from outside the department.
 - 5.3.6.b.(3) Solicitation of input by the committee from appropriate constituencies of the department. Confidentiality of all individual evaluations will be ensured
 - 5.3.6.b.(4) Opportunity for the department chair to prepare a portfolio summarizing his or her administrative achievements for the preceding period for consideration by those individuals conducting the review.
 - 5.3.6.b.(5) Preparation of a written report summarizing the findings and recommendations of the review, which will be forwarded to the dean and the department chair.
 - 5.3.6.b.(6) The dean will submit the written report along with any additional comments and recommendations to the provost and provide appropriate feedback to the faculty and staff.
- 5.3.7 Additional Review. The dean may initiate a review at any time he or she judges such a review is needed. Likewise, the faculty of a particular department may initiate, by majority vote, such a review.
- 5.3.8 Vote of Confidence. A vote of confidence by secret ballot may be called upon written request to the dean by 50 percent of the faculty within the department.

Section 4. Department Meetings

- 5.4.1 Meetings. Meetings of each department faculty may be called at the discretion of the department chair, or in the absence of the department chair, by a member of the constituent faculty appointed by the department chair, or upon written petition of not less than 25 percent of the constituent faculty. Minutes of each meeting shall be distributed to each faculty member.
- 5.4.2 Chairing Meetings. The department chair, or a member of the constituent faculty designated by the department chair, shall serve as chairperson and presiding officer during department meetings.

- 5.4.3 Quorum. A quorum shall consist of 50 percent of the full-time board appointed department faculty.
- 5.4.4 Agenda. The department chair, or the appointed member of the constituent faculty, shall be responsible for and shall issue the agenda at least one day prior to each meeting of the constituent faculty. The agenda shall list all subjects, other than routine matters, to be voted on by the constituent faculty. A faculty member may submit an item for the master agenda. If the item is not taken up for consideration in the department meeting, it may be called for at that meeting by a 25 percent vote of the faculty present.
- 5.4.5 Voting Procedure. Major policies to be voted upon by faculty must be presented at a faculty meeting at least one week prior to voting. A simple majority (of the quorum) is needed to approve an item. Voting shall be by secret ballot upon the request of one faculty member. Opportunity will be given to faculty to vote by absentee ballot. Absentee ballot shall be given to the secretary prior to the meeting.
- 5.4.6 Administrative Veto Power. The chair has power to veto any item passed by the department faculty. Once vetoed, the item may be placed on the agenda at the request of the faculty and the veto may be overridden by a two-thirds vote of the department faculty.

Article VI

University-Level Councils and Committees

Section 1. Faculty Council

- 6.1.1 Membership and Selection. Elected faculty members of the council serve for three years, taking office each year on September 1 or on the official opening date of the academic year, whichever is earlier. In the COEd, the dean or dean's designee, invites nominations and conducts the election. Faculty may self- nominate or be nominated by others. Every member of the education faculty, as defined in these By-Laws, Article II, Section 1, shall be eligible to be a candidate for the Faculty Council. Elections are held before April 15 of each year in which an election is to be held. All elections for members of the council are by secret ballot.
- 6.1.2 Function. The Faculty Council is empowered to act for the university faculty in all matters pertaining to the immediate government of the university. The council is responsible to and reports to the university faculty and, through the president, to the regents. The university faculty, president, and regents retain the authority to review policy actions taken by the council.

Section 2. Graduate Council

6.2.1 Membership and Selection. The council consists of one member elected by and from the constituent graduate faculty of each college that offers programs leading to graduate degree, four members of the graduate faculty appointed by the president of the university, two graduate students, and the dean and assistant or associate dean of the college. The regularly elected and appointed faculty members of the council serve for three years. Regular elections for college representatives on the council are held before the end of the spring semester in each year in which the college is to hold an election. The constituent graduate faculty of each college establishes procedures for nominating its representatives and submits to the council's Election Committee the

names of two nominees. In the COEd, the dean, or dean's designee, invites nominations. Faculty may self-nominate or be nominated by others. Every voting member of the graduate faculty is eligible to serve on the council. The Graduate Council Election Committee prepares ballots and distributes them to voting members of the graduate faculty of the college concerned.

6.2.2 Function. The Graduate Council is the representative body of and is empowered to act for the graduate faculty, to which the constitution of the university faculty delegates those responsibilities stated in the By- Laws of the Faculty of the College of Graduate Studies, Article I, Section 3–this constituent faculty is authorized to establish and effect its educational objectives, including matters of student admission and curriculum, and to participate in the selection of its dean, other executive officers, and faculty members, subject only to the general rules and regulations of the university faculty and the authority of the president and the regents. The council is responsible for and reports to the graduate faculty, which retains the authority to review actions of the council.

Section 3. Research Council

- 6.3.1 Membership and Selection. Three faculty members from the College of Letters and Science, one faculty member from each of the other colleges except Graduate Studies, two members appointed by the president to ensure adequate representation from faculty constituencies that are most active in research, and (without vote) vice president for research and graduate studies and dean of library services (or the latter's designee). The representatives from the colleges are designated in accordance with procedures determined by their respective faculties. The vice president for research and graduate studies serves as chair of the Research Council. In the COEd, the dean, or dean's designee, conducts the election. Faculty may self- nominate or be nominated by others.
- 6.3.2 Function. The Research Council is the faculty's standing committee that oversees the implementation of research policies (see FSH 5100 and 5200) and resolves disagreement about the interpretation or implementation of those policies. The Human Assurances Committee (HAC) is a standing subcommittee of the Research Council.

Section 4. Teacher Education Coordinating Committee. FSH 1640.86

- 6.4.1. Function [See also University of Idaho FSH 4300.] [ed. 7-06]
 - 6.4.1.a. To conduct a continuing review of teacher-education policies and to promote quality teacher preparation.
 - 6.4.1.b. To act on and submit to the respective college committees proposed changes in teacher education certifications and endorsements. [rev. 3-14]
 - 6.4.1.c. To provide updates on state and national issues pertaining to the preparation of educators. *[rev. 3-14]*
 - 6.4.1.d. TECC will meet in September, January and March, prior to UCC deadlines, in order to facilitate curriculum changes. Meeting dates/times will be posted annually by the first week of September. [add. 3-14]
- 6.4.2. Structure, Membership, and Selection

Faculty members are nominated by the College of Education from each of the following groups: four from programs within the Department of Curriculum and Instruction, including representation from the elementary program, the secondary program, the career and technical education program and the special education program; one from the Department of Movement Science physical education teacher education program; one faculty member from each of the following groups: early childhood, agricultural education, music education, English education, mathematics education, social sciences, natural sciences and business; two junior or senior level students (one from the College of Education

and the second annually rotating between early childhood education, agricultural education and music education); three P-12 school personnel, including a superintendent, a principal and a teacher, representing both elementary and secondary education as well as multiple districts; and the Director of Assessment (w/o vote) and the Dean of the College of Education or designee (w/o vote), who serves as chair. [rev. 7-08, 7-10, 3-14]

Article VII

College Committees

When considering college committee membership, every effort will be made to balance off-campus faculty representation with main campus faculty representation when appropriate. (adopted December 17, 2009)

Section 1. Faculty Affairs and Awards Committee

7.1.1. Membership and Selection. This committee is made up of one full-time board appointed faculty representative from each department. Department faculty are elected within departments and serve three-year staggered terms. Members can serve consecutive terms. The committee members elect their chair (from among its members). Administrators (deans, chairs) are available for consultation upon request.

7.1.2. Function

- 7.1.2.a. Committee members: a) conduct a continuing study of salaries, professional problems, welfare, retirement options and benefits, and working conditions of faculty members, b) call attention of the dean, as appropriate, to matters concerning faculty affairs in any department the committee believes should be of concern, and c) serve as a "court of first instance" in matters of dispute involving the interpretation and application of policies affecting the welfare of faculty members.
- 7.1.2.b. Committee members are responsible for determining the nomination and selection process for three college awards: The Faculty Teaching Award, the Faculty Scholarship Award, and the Faculty Service Award. Committee members collaborate with the Staff Affairs and Awards Committee and the Deans' Office to plan and organize the COEd Awards banquet.

Section 2. Staff Advisory Committee

7.2.1. Membership and Selection. This committee is made up of one full-time board appointed staff representative from each department, from the Deans' Suite, from Student Services, from TRIO, and from CDHD. Staff are elected within units and serve three-year staggered terms. Members can serve consecutive terms. The committee members elect their chair (from among its members). Administrators (deans, chairs) are available for consultation upon request.

7.2.2. Function.

7.2.2.a. Committee members: a) conduct a continuing study of salaries, professional problems, welfare, and working conditions of staff members, b) call attention of the dean, as appropriate, to matters concerning staff affairs in any unit the committee believes should be of concern, and c) serve as a "court of first instance" in matters of dispute involving the interpretation and application of policies affecting the welfare of staff members.

7.2.2.b. Committee members are responsible for determining the nomination and selection process for three college awards: Outstanding Classified Staff Award, Outstanding Non-Faculty Exempt Staff Award, and Outstanding Staff Team Award. Committee members collaborate with the Faculty Affairs and Awards Committee and the Deans' Office to plan and organize the COEd Awards banquet.

Section 3. Dean's Advisory Council

- 7.3.1. Membership and Selection. This committee is made up of two full-time board appointed faculty representatives from each department in the college, across all campuses. Department representatives are elected by the faculty in each department and serve two-year staggered terms. Effort is made to ensure gender and rank diversity from each department. The dean serves as chair of the Council.
- 7.3.2. Function. Council members advise the dean on a variety of issues related to college programs and activities. Meeting agendas are typically set by the dean around topical issues about which he or she is seeking input from the faculty perspective.

Section 4. College of Education and Teacher Education Undergraduate Student Petition Committee.

- 7.4.1. Membership and Selection. This committee is made up of one full-time board appointed faculty representative from each department. A non-voting member from each teacher education unit outside of the college may attend all meetings. Department faculty is elected within departments and serve three- year staggered terms. A member cannot serve an additional consecutive term (adopted May 12, 2006). The chair is elected by its members. The associate dean serves as liaison (without vote unless there is a tie). The associate dean's management assistant will serve as liaison and recorder. A quorum shall consist of 50 percent of the committee membership.
- 7.4.2. Function. Hear petitions for: a) admission requests when students do not meet teacher education program admission requirements and/or application denied by faculty, b) appeals of substitution/waivers of courses when denied by the associate dean, d) appeals when probation or disqualification reinstatement is denied by the associate dean, d) appeals when financial aid reinstatement is denied and 3) other academic items that students bring forth after all other appropriate channels have been exhausted.

Section 5. College Coordinating Committee

- 7.5.1. Membership and Selection. The committee shall consist of: a) the dean (as chair), b) the associate dean, (ex officio, without vote), c) the college's representative to the Faculty Council, d) the elected representative to the Graduate Council, e) the representative to the Research Council, f) the representative to the University Curriculum Committee, g) the three department chairs and h) additional representatives from each department as needed to assure that at least two persons represent each department on the committee. Each department will have two voting members. Terms of office for elected faculty members shall be one year. (Additional terms are allowed.) (adopted May 12, 2006).
- 7.5.2. Function. This committee represents the administration and the faculty of the COEd in reviewing and implementing policy matters. Complete minutes of the College Coordinating committee shall be mailed (snail mail or e-mail) to every voting member of the COEd faculty within two weeks of each meeting. Minutes will be distributed and approved at each ensuing *meeting (adopted May*

Section 6. Graduate Research and Policy Committee

- 7.6.1. Membership and Selection. This committee is made up of two graduate faculty members, other than a department chair, from each department; the associate dean, or his/her representative (without vote); the Graduate Council representative (without vote); the Research Council representative (without vote); and one doctoral student from the College of Education (without vote). Department faculty is elected within departments and serve three-year staggered terms. The student member is selected annually by the committee members, from a pool of nominees solicited by the voting committee members from their respective department faculty. When possible, thought should be given to the emphasis area and the part-time or full-time nature of prospective doctoral students as potential members so as to ensure diverse perspectives over time. The student member will be directed to not attend when confidential or highly sensitive conversations transpire. The chair is elected annually (from among its members) by the membership of the committee. The associate dean serves as liaison.
- 7.6.2. Function. This committee: a) ensures that the COEd graduate program policies are followed; b) acts as a standing committee to review and update existing policy; c) drafts new policy proposals and recommends procedures related to issues as they arise; d) assesses course and program quality within various program areas, subject only to the limits of academic freedom; e) acts as an appeals board for contested graduate issues; and f) addresses quality through assessment, evaluation and continuous improvement through policy and practice.

Section 7. Scholarship Committee.

- 7.7.1. Membership and Selection. This committee is made up of the three department chairs and the dean who serves as chair.
- 7.7.2. Function. The committee is responsible for coordinating the process for scholarship awards for the college. This includes developing parameters for the selection of students for scholarships available to students from more than one department, establishing the time frame for submission of nominations consistent with the Office of Financial Aid and donor criteria, and facilitating the reaward process as scholarships become available during the award year. Nominations for scholarships that are specific to a department are governed by department operating guidelines and practices, consistent with the university scholarship award process.

Section 8. Mentoring Committees

A mentoring committee will be established for each first appointment tenure-track and clinical faculty with support, guidance and progress evaluations in their quest to become tenured and/or promoted. Membership, responsibilities, and procedures are defined by the faculty-approved "College of Education Formal Mentor Process for Academic Faculty" (approved April 20, 2012).

Section 9. Tenure and Promotion Committee

- 7.9.1. Membership and Selection
 - 7.9.1.a. The tenure and promotion committee shall be composed of eight members that include seven voting faculty members who do not hold administrative appointments and the dean (or appointee) who serves as chair, without vote.
 - 7.9.1.b. Tenured faculty is to serve three years on a staggered basis, the order to be determined by the dean of the COEd. All efforts should be made to ensure rank and gender equity. Non-tenured faculty will serve a one-year term.
 - 7.9.5.a. They are to be selected by the College Coordinating Committee in the following

manner: a) two members (one male and one female, with appropriate rank representation where possible) and one substitute shall be selected by lot from the tenured faculty in each department, excluding the dean and the department chairs. b) one member and one substitute shall be selected by lot from among the non-tenured faculty of the department currently in rotation. This position will rotate annually through the three departments.

- 7.9.5.b. A faculty member under consideration by the committee has the right to challenge two of the committee members without cause (one from within their department and one from without) (adopted May 12, 2006). Said challenge must be exercised in writing, delivered to the chair at least three (3) working days prior to the hearing. A member of the committee who is challenged shall be replaced by the next substitute.
- 7.9.5.c. A member of the committee who is under consideration for tenure or promotion shall be replaced for that year.
- 7.9.5.d. A Clinical faculty member under consideration has the right to request that a clinical faculty member serve on the committee.

7.9.2. Duties of the Committee

- 7.9.2.a. The committee reviews evidence, holds hearings, and deliberates about the tenure and/or promotion of each faculty member under consideration with specific reference to the criteria established by the COEd and the department of the faculty member concerned and reflected in the faculty member's position description. This review involves full consideration of the material that was used in making the recommendation at the department level.
- 7.9.2.b. Tenure and promotion are to be considered separately.
- 7.9.2.c. In the event that the provost determines that further review of a member's performance is required (see FSH 3320 B-2.2), this committee shall operate as a Performance Review Committee (FSH 3320 B-4).
- 7.9.2.d. All reviews, hearings and meetings, and deliberations are to be kept confidential.

7.9.3. Notice of Convening of Committee.

- 7.9.3.a. The chair shall specify the times and locations of all committee hearings and meetings. Notices will be posted in every department office and the COEd office and in every onand off- campus building housing COEd faculty. All faculty will be notified by mail.
- 7.9.3.b. Notice of hearings and meetings of the committee shall be given in writing at least ten (10) working days before that day of the hearing or meeting to all members of the committee and to all faculty who will be under consideration at such hearing or meeting. Said notice shall be sufficient if (a) duly mailed by United States mail to the faculty member's last known address, (b) placed on the faculty member's desk, or (c) placed in the appropriate faculty mail box.
- 7.9.3.c. Anyone (including the committee) offering data against a faculty member under consideration must provide pertinent data to the chair at least six (6) working days prior to the scheduled hearing. This data must include, but not be limited to, the name of each witness and the nature of the opposing data which will be presented by each witness. The faculty member under consideration shall be notified of opposing data within five (5) working days of the scheduled hearing and has this interval period prior to the meeting to provide pertinent information relating to data presented against him/her.
- 7.9.3.d. The chair shall determine what opposing data is admissible. Hearsay data shall be excluded.

7.9.4. Hearings.

7.9.4.a. The committee shall hold a hearing for the taking of data with respect to each faculty

- member under consideration. Discussions will be summarized in writing by a designee of the chair.
- 7.9.4.b. The department chairs will be requested to provide the appropriate information required by the Faculty-Staff Handbook for each faculty member under review. (See also the Professional Portfolio description in the FSH Section 1565 B). Mentor committee data, in addition, will be provided for first appointment tenure-track faculty.
- 7.9.4.c. Each faculty member shall be considered on an individual basis, never collectively.
- 7.9.4.d. The hearings shall be closed unless the faculty member then under consideration desires that it be open. If the faculty member desires that said hearing be open, such desire must be made known to the Committee Chair, in writing, at least three (3) working days prior to the date of such hearing. However, the chair may close a hearing to all persons except members of the committee and the faculty member then under consideration if said chair deems such action necessary to maintain order.
- 7.9.4.e. A faculty member shall have the right to personally question each opposing witness.
- 7.9.4.f. A member of the committee or faculty member then under consideration may offer, or object to, data.
- 7.9.4.g. The chair shall rule conclusively for the committee on all procedural points.

7.9.5. Meetings.

- 7.9.5.a. Once the hearings have been concluded, a meeting will be convened for action by the committee. Discussions will be summarized in writing by a designee of the chair.
- 7.9.5.b. The chair shall preside over all meetings without vote. The meetings of the committee shall be closed.
- 7.9.5.c. The chair will conduct voting on candidates by closed ballot. Each committee member shall decide confidentially whether to recommend the granting of tenure and/or promotion.
- 7.9.5.d. The chair shall record the vote of each member. The record of votes and the written summary of the discussion shall be delivered to the dean of the college.
- 7.9.5.e. The deliberations of the committee are to be kept confidential.

7.9.6. Delay or Withdrawal of Process.

- 7.9.6.a. A candidate may delay the tenure process no later than the 7th full year of service (FSH 3520 G1).
- 7.9.6.b. A candidate may stop the promotion process at any time without prejudice.

7.9.7. College of Education Policy.

- 7.9.7.a. The College of Education has adopted guidelines and criteria for promotion and tenure in line with those established for the university (Faculty-Staff Handbook Sections 1565 Academic Ranks and Responsibilities, 3520 Faculty Tenure and 3560 Faculty Promotions). Each department could, in addition, specify criteria for its faculty.
- 7.9.7.b. The latest College of Education Guidelines for Tenure and Promotion and Annual Performance Evaluation were adopted May 16, 2011 and became effective January 2012. Guidelines for Promotion and Annual Performance of Clinical Faculty were adopted April 24, 2014 and became effective immediately.

Section 10. College Assessment Committee.

7.10.1. Membership and Selection. This committee is made up of one faculty representative from each

degree program within the College; any faculty or staff with college-wide data collection/record-keeping responsibility, determined by the dean; the director of assessment and accreditation, who co-chairs the committee with an elected faculty member; and the associate dean, who serves as exofficio and the conduit to the Leadership Team. Faculty members are elected by their respective department and serve two-year, staggered terms. Staff members are appointed by the dean and serve a term that is specified by the dean. The members of the committee will annually elect a co-chairperson from among the committee faculty members.

- 7.10.2. Function. The purposes of this committee are 1) to develop, implement and refine the assessment systems for continuous improvement of the programs in the College of Education, b) to recommend for faculty vote new policy regarding assessment practices and procedures, and c) to appoint subcommittees for specialized and accreditation activity.
- 7.10.3. Subcommittees. Accreditation committees are subcommittees of the College Assessment committee and may have appointed membership beyond that of the College Assessment Committee. Approved September 21, 2012.

Section 11. College Safety and Health Committee (approved May 2010).

- 7.11.1. Membership and Selection. The committee shall consist of one faculty and/or staff representative from each academic department, TRIO, and CDHD; the University Safety and Loss Control Committee representative (without vote); and the dean, or his/her representative (without vote). The safety and health representatives will be appointed by the department chairs, in concert with the dean, to assure representation across departments, buildings, and delivery sites. Members are appointed for three-year staggered terms. Members may serve consecutive terms. The members of the committee will annually elect a chairperson from among the committee members. The associate dean serves as liaison.
- 7.11.2. Function. The purpose of this committee is to increase the health and safety in the programs and facilities administered by the College of Education. The committee will assist the unit administrators of the college in implementation of the unit safety and health program.

Section 12. College Technology Committee.

- 7.12.1. Membership and Selection. This committee is made up of two faculty representatives from each department. The department representatives should represent their respective units and the technology considerations and needs therein. These faculty members are elected by the department and serve two-year, staggered terms. The committee is also made up of staff with relevant learning technology responsibilities. These staff members are appointed by the associate dean and serve a term that is specified by the associate dean. The committee chair is elected by its members.
- 7.12.2. Function. Committee members advise college administration on a variety of learning and related technology issues associated with college programs and activities. Meeting agendas are typically set by the chair and associate dean around pressing and future topical issues that require input from the faculty perspective.

Section 13. Ad Hoc Committees.

The dean, or dean's designee, may establish ad hoc committees to provide assistance and advice on specific areas of emphasis. Membership, selection and function of ad hoc committees will be determined by the dean, or dean's designee.

Article VIII

College Advocacy Council

Section 1. Membership.

The council shall consist of the dean, the development director, and persons external to the college who represent groups important to the college.

Section 2. Function.

The College Advocacy Council provides advice to the dean on issues relating to its programs and supports the development of the College's external and alumni relations.

Article IX

Department Advisory Boards

Section 1. Membership

Each department shall implement an advisory board whose members include the chair, a minimum of two faculty, and persons external to the college who represent groups important to the academic programs of the department.

Section 2. Function

The Department Advisory Boards provide advice to program faculty and the chair on issues relating to its academic programs.

Article X

Rules of Order

Section 1. Robert's Rules of Order.

Robert's Rules of Order, newly revised edition, shall govern all meetings of the education faculty in all cases where they are applicable and in which they are not in conflict with the Constitution of the University Faculty, these By-Laws, or any rules subsequently adopted by majority vote of the education faculty for the conduct of their respective meetings.

Article XI

Amendments

Section 1. Amendments

These college By-Laws may be amended by a majority vote of the members of the education faculty, as defined in Article II, Section 1, in attendance at a regular meeting, a quorum being present. No amendment may be proposed or adopted which would conflict with any provision of the Constitution of the University Faculty. Proposed amendments must have been published in full with the agenda at least one week prior to the meeting of the education faculty, or presented in writing at the meeting previous to the one in which the vote is to be taken. No provision of this Article XI may be suspended.

Appendix 1

UPDATE

1520 ARTICLE II--FACULTY CLASSIFICATIONS.

Section 1. University Faculty. The university faculty is constituted of the president, provost, vice presidents, deans, professors, associate professors, assistant professors, senior instructors, instructors (including those professors, associate professors, assistant professors, senior instructors, and instructors whose titles have distinguished, research, extension, or visiting designations, e.g., "assistant research professor" and "visiting associate professor"), and lecturers who have served at least four semesters on more than half-time appointment [see <u>1565 K-1</u>]. Those who qualify under this section have the privilege of participation with vote in meetings of the university faculty and the appropriate constituent faculties. *[ed. 7-99, 7-01]*

Section 2. Emeriti. Faculty member's emeriti have the privilege of participation without vote in meetings of the university faculty and the appropriate constituent and associated faculties. Also, they may be appointed to serve with vote on UI committees. [See also <u>1565 H.</u>] *[ed. 7-00]*

Section 3. Associated Faculties.

Clause A. The adjunct faculty [see <u>1565 I</u>] and the affiliate faculty [see <u>1565 J</u>] are associated faculties. Other associated faculties may be established as needed with the approval of the university faculty, president, and regents. *[ed. 7-00]*

Clause B. Members of associated faculties have the privilege of participation without vote in meetings of the university faculty. They have the privilege of participation with vote in meetings of their associated faculties and on faculty committees. When the bylaws of the constituent faculty concerned so provide, members of the associated faculties have the privilege of participation with vote in meetings of their respective constituencies of the university faculty; however, when they are authorized to vote, they are not counted among the full-time-equivalent faculty members when determining the basis for the constituent faculty's representation on the Faculty Council.

Appendix 2

Academic Ranks and Responsibilities

Ranks and Responsibilities. All ranks and responsibilities of the faculty of the College of Education shall be as defined and in accordance with the University of Idaho Faculty and Staff Handbook (FSH) 1565 and other such chapters and sections of the FSH as appropriate. A link to the official University of Idaho FSH 1565 can be found here.